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ATSHIS HSUhHl T |

Y, Febol 3 ATHT © T 0. % AT F SATHIHT “WARTS HUTA 053" (AR T T TS el TR
IT TR AT fadaa e THeT SR Hiad 97 TRues 3 |

9.3 YISRTE FATATST TATI
9T YT TUMTCITAT TSE Ufeg TUTRT O FaT JITAT 4-9 92T T 8 q2T I FIATeaeh TATq=T & e qaare
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(@ ¥ T AR FEEF FIOAA ACAF TEAT GO TRH THE FRIGRES I A AATAT FFIAR
FIRIATAT ATTHT T HEea T TRET:

q. TS S fo. - AT Febel T BRIAR ATIAART [HET Feberd, oIl TaTE, T ATIR FoATel,
farereirr ey, Ao e SR aaE §fey FRERES |

. WETF FHHAT - AU dfebg YT Arciicebl ANl (dTqa [FShIeTd Sqaeaad, il AT,
fardraaert geamfd, &= HarT Jurel Al e 938 dRadeHE Jaes |

@  fava enfie auET SEET ATARTT YARANEER SFEATS SUASH TRTTHT ATTHIL:
farTe anfefer auwT B TRAT FAHFRI ATURAT SARTAETATE SbeATs YTl THTH |

®) o e auHT SEwT GouTad aUT TRIHURRIESH (MUH AP THcaH! (aaur T Sddr qax
FRIARAT Ee o WHl AT G GFI=g AT (ATesare HFawe Jred TR SATH ¢

FIIAIH] ToaTdAd TAT JRIABRIEEHR] AT WHcAR [qav0r = THITH TWhl T T FFIR] I
PRIRHAT Feee Golvel Te TRl B |

4. T T AR qHE Easll ST fean
N BERINE]
1 |sremer AT " TS e :::;ﬁj ¥5 3% RUR
RERIEES LR
B 1 A g SRR :;jj:xiﬂ e e
; BERIEES ¥ $390
3 |HETEs S, RIS dlde —p— 1)55:02 0,05,y
¥ | g SorR RS % ?,ca,ao:_ 3,53,%05
% | ol 9TRET STH [T ?wm?r{w a!,aik; 54,539
© | gETTE S q9E T m \"93; ¥ 933
RERIRED -
s |faous gEres B ATHEST el m—— e 9,5¥R
® P nfie avwn SEE AT TERIAESHT £ GoHTAE JAT MR i AR samTd
TATHFT TRAT ITASH TRTZTERT ATARTET BT
FEAT A ST JTAH THUHT |
@)  FEA AT FAR AR GRE TR T T ATHRAT AR @R T FIROT, &l AT Gedr 3 At

el T T PAX GRE TR ATTA FFIAA TTHTAT TR B
THTT |

90 3i anfiicp grddcar
3. d. 200Y/006



JoRIS5T Scb 3fes
SUNRISE BANK LIMITED

ATl =0T JUIrelt WU a7 T9TH T AT AT FieRt faeqa feramom:

1. dFHT HF PRATEATAE AT TAA GO TH AMGF TEA  [AIAEEA, FHAN G4 I
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SUNRISE BANK LIMITED
General

Sunrise Bank Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Bank”) is a public limited liability company
domiciled in Nepal with its registered office at Gairidhara, Kathmandu. The Bank’s shares are
listed and traded in Nepal Stock Exchange Limited. The Bank carries out commercial banking
activities and other financial services in Nepal under the license from Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB),
the Central Bank of Nepal, as Class “"A” licensed financial institution under the Bank and Financial
Institution Act, 2017.

Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended 16 July 2019 comprises Statement
of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Notes to the Financial Statements,
Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprises Parent “Sunrise Bank” and its subsidiary
“Sunrise Capital Limited” which together is referred to as the Group.

Principal Activities and Operations

Bank

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide commercial banking services including agency
services, trade finance services, investment and treasury operations, card services, e-banking
products, remittances, foreign currency operations and other financial services to its customers
through its branches, extension counters, strategic business units, ATMs and network of agents.

Ownership of Subsidiary as at 16" July 2019 is given below:

Name Principal Activities FY 2018719 FY 2017718
Sunrise Management of public offerings, portfolio
Capital management, underwriting of securities, 78.571% shareholding
Limited management of mutual fund schemes.
Subsidiary

The principal activities of the Subsidiary are to provide merchant/investment banking services
that include management of public offerings, portfolio management, underwriting of securities,
and fund management of mutual fund schemes, depository participant's service under Central
Depository Service (CDS) and administration and record keeping of securities of its clients.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards and carve-outs issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
on September 20, 2018 on NFRS requirement, which allowed alternative treatments and the
bank adopted following carve outs:
a) NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement,

- Impairment accounting,

- Calculation of interest income as per effective interest rate

- Calculation of interest income on amortized cost

Disclosure of carve-outs is provided in Para 2.4.3, 3.1, 3.4.2, 3.4.6 and 3.13 for Financial
Instruments: Recognition and measurement (NAS39).

Financial information recorded in compliance with directives of Nepal Rastra Bank and relevant
business practices followed by the bank unless as adjusted for compliance with NFRS.
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Reporting period and approval of Financial Statements
2.2.1 Reporting Period

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar. The corresponding
dates for the English calendar are as follows:

Relevant Financial Statement Neggltzs? 'S::(iegglar E%g;fe’h /C'f::ir:)%ar
Comparative SFP* Date 32 Ashad 2075 16 July 2018
Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2074 - 32 Ashad 2075 16 July 2017 - 16 July 2018
SFP* Date 31 Ashad 2076 16 July 2019
Reporting period 1 Shrawan 2075 - 31 Ashad 2076 16 July 2018 - 16 July 2019

*SFP = Statement of financial position

2.2.2 Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements
of Sunrise Bank Limited as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

2.2.3 Approval of Financial Statements by Directors

The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Directors vide its
resolution dated 2076/05/31 (2019/09/17) and recommended for its approval by the Annual
General Meeting of the shareholders.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of the Bank are presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs), a functional and
presentation currency, which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Bank operates. Financial information is presented in Nepalese Rupees. There was no change in
Bank’s presentation and functional currency during the year under review-

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected.

The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have most significant effect in the Financial Statements are as follows:

2.4.1 Going Concern

The Board of Directors has made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. Furthermore, the Board of Directors is not aware of any material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt upon Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend
either to liquidate or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to
be prepared on the going concern basis.
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2.4.2 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement
of financial position can be derived from active markets, they are derived from observable
market data. However, if this is not available, judgment is required to establish fair values. The
valuation of financial instruments is described in more details in Note 5.1 under “Fair Value of
financial assets and liabilities”.

2.4.3 Impairment of Financial Assets — Loans and Receivables

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each statement of financial
position date to assess whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement.
In particular, judgment of the management is required in the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss.

These estimates are based on assumptions about a humber of factors and actual results may
differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance.

Loans and advances that have been assessed individually and all individually insignificant loans
and advances are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets with similar risk characteristics,
to determine whether provision should be made due to incurred loss events for which there
is objective evidence, but the effects of which are not yet evident. The collective assessment
takes in to account data from the loan portfolio such as levels of arrears, credit quality, portfolio
size etc. and judgments based on current economic conditions.

The Bank has categorized total loan into 5 products namely Term Loan, Personal Loan, Home
Loan, Hire Purchase, Short Term Loan. The loan has been classified into various periods on the
basis of due days as follows:

Ageing

CURRENT

01-30 DAYS

31-60 DAYS

61-90 DAYS

91-120 DAYS

121-150 DAYS
151-180 DAYS

180 DAYS AND ABOVE

The Loss rate on each period has been calculated by multiplying Probability of Default (PD) with
Loss Given Default (LGD). Probability of Default has been calculated on the basis of probability
matrix by taking 72 months loan data as the basis. For the purpose of calculation of Loss
Given Default (LGD), the loan which has been categorized as loss as per NRB directive, has
been taken and the recovery history of the same has been analyzed upon to reach the LGD.
The individually impaired loan has been subtracted from the total loan and the same has been
multiplied by loss rate to calculate collective impairment. Total impairment is the sum of the
collective and individual impairment. Loans and advances considered for incurred loss model
impairment which approximately comes at 38% of total portfolio.

The bank has opted to apply carve-out on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly,
individual and collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the
impairment provision required under NRB directive no. 2, higher of the amount derived from
these measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and receivables.
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2.4.4 Impairment of Financial Instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The Bank reviews its debt securities designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income, at each reporting date to assess whether they are impaired. Objective evidence that a
debt security designated at fair value through other comprehensive income is impaired includes
among other things significant financial difficulty of the issuer, a breach of contract such as a
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments etc. The Bank also records impairment
charges on equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
where there is significant or prolonged decline in fair value below their cost. The determination
of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment. The Bank generally treats ‘significant’
as 20% and ‘prolonged’ as greater than six months. In addition, Bank evaluates, among other
factors, historical share price movements, duration and extent up to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

2.4.5 Taxation

The Bank is subject to income tax and judgment is required to determine the total provision
for current, deferred and other taxes due to the uncertainties that exist with respect to the
interpretation of the applicable tax laws, at the time of preparation of these Financial Statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies.

2.4.6 Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit obligations and the present value of their obligations are
determined using actuarial valuations.

The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary
increments, mortality rates and possible future pension increments if any. Due to the long-term
nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to uncertainty. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of
Nepal government bonds with maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined
benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Future
salary increment and pension increment are based on expected future salary increment rates
of the Bank.

2.4.7 Fair Value of Property, Plant and Equipment

The freehold land and buildings of the bank are not reflected at fair value and no revaluation
has been carried at the reporting date. Under NFRS 1, a first-time adopter may elect to use a
previous GAAP revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment at, or before, the date
of transition to NFRSs as deemed cost at the date of the revaluation, if the revaluation was, at
the date of the revaluation, broadly comparable to:

a) Fair value; or
b) Cost or depreciated cost in accordance with NFRSs, adjusted to reflect, for example,
changes in a general or specific price index
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2.4.8 Useful Life-time of the Property, Plant and Equipment

The Bank is following the cost model for recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment. The
Bank reviews the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant
and equipment at each reporting date.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is calculated using the written down value
method to amortize their cost over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

S. N. | Assets Types Life of an Asset (in Years)
1. Building 50
2. Furniture & Fixtures 10
3. Office Equipments 10
4, Plant & Machinery 10
5. Vehicles 7
6. Computers and Accessories 7
7. Intangible Assets 5
8. Leasehold Assets 10
9. Deferred Furnishing 3

Costs of refurbishment and renovation of leasehold premises are depreciated over the remaining
period of that lease or 10 years, whichever is less.

For additions during the year, depreciation is charged from the month the assets is put to use
and for disposed assets, depreciation is charged up to the month immediately preceding the
month of disposal.

License fees for the software paid by the Bank are amortized over the period of the license.
Profit or loss on disposal of fixed assets is recognized in the profit and loss of the year.

2.4.9 Commitments and Contingencies

All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. Contingent
liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future
events or present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot
be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Statement of Financial
Position but are disclosed unless they are remote.

2.4.10 Classification of Investment Properties

Management requires using its judgment to determine whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. The Bank has developed criteria so it can exercise its judgment consistently.
A property that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both and which generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by the Bank is accounted for as
investment properties. On the other hand, a property that is used for operations or in the
process of providing services or for administrative purposes and which do not directly generate
cash flows as a standalone assets are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. The
Bank assesses on an annual basis the accounting classification of its properties taking into
consideration the current use of such properties.

Changes in Accounting policies

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied
by the bank in preparing and presenting financial statements. The bank is permitted to change
an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in
the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
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transactions, other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance,
or cash flows. There are no changes in the accounting policies in the current fiscal year.

New Standards in issue but not yet effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS
39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments
— Disclosures have been applied. NRFS 9 has been complied for the classification of Financial
Instruments.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations
have been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates.
Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

New Standards and interpretation not adopted

There have been, and are expected to be, a number of significant changes to the Bank's
financial reporting as a result of amended or new accounting standards, specifically IFRSs, that
have been or will be issued by the IASB. These standards will be applicable when adopted in
Nepal. The most significant of these are as follows:

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’- Impairment IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ was issued
by the IASB in July 2014 and effective internationally for the financials beginning on or after
1 January 2018. ASB endorsed NFRS 9 Financial Instruments with some exceptions, mainly in
the impairment. Currently, Incurred Loss Model as specified in NAS 39 is used. The requirement
of IFRS 9 is Expected Credit Loss Model.

Expected Credit Loss Model (ECL) of Impairment: The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model
is a forward looking model. The ECL estimates are unbiased, probability-weighted, and include
supportable information about past events, current conditions, and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Under the general approach, IFRS 9 recognizes three stage approaches to measure expected
credit losses and recognized interest income.

Stage 1: 12-month ECL - No significantly increased credit risk Financial instruments that have
not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition require, at initial recognition
a provision for ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next
12 months (12-month ECL). For those financial assets with a remaining maturity of less than
12 months, a Probability of Default (PD) is used that corresponds to the remaining maturity.
Interest will be calculated on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset before adjusting
for ECL.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - Significantly increased credit risk in the event of a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a provision is required for the lifetime ECL representing
losses over the life of the financial instrument (life time ECL). Interest income will continue to
be recognized on a gross basis.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - Defaulted Financial instruments that move into Stage 3 once credit
impaired and purchases of credit impaired assets will require a lifetime provision. Interest
income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset less ECL.

The management is still assessing the potential impact on its financial statements, if Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) model is introduced.

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers: In 2014, the IASB issued IFRS15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which will replace IAS18 Revenue and IAS11
Construction Contracts. It applies to all contracts with customers except leases, financial
instruments and insurance contracts. This standard will establish a more systematic approach
for revenue measurement and recognition.
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IFRS 16 — Leases: In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases, which will replace IAS
17 Leases. Under the new requirements, lessees would be required to recognize assets and
liabilities arising from both operating and finance leases on the balance sheet. The expected
effective date as announced by IASB is 1 January 2019.

2.8 Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Bank
considers the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various
internal and external factors have been considered for determining the discount rate to be
applied to the cash flows of company.

2.9 Materiality

The Bank for the preparation of financial statements determines materiality based on the nature
or magnitude, or both. Materiality is a pervasive constraint in financial reporting because it is
pertinent to all of the qualitative characteristics.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these Financial Statements, unless otherwise indicated.

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of the Bank have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except
for the following material items in the Statement of Financial Position:

a) Investment designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (quoted) is
measured at fair value.

b) Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined
benefit obligation less the fair value of the plan assets.

¢) Financial assets and financial liabilities held at amortized cost at measured using a rate
that is a close approximation of effective interest rate. However, the bank has opted to
apply carve-out and measure the financial assets and liabilities at carrying amount i.e.
amount disbursed to borrower and amount received from the lender by the bank.

3.2 Basis of consolidation
3.2.1 Business Combinations and Goodwvill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as per the requirements
of Nepal Financial Reporting Standard - NFRS 03 (Business Combinations). The Bank measures
goodwill as the fair value of the consideration transferred including the recognized amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree, less the net recognized amount (generally fair value)
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, all measured as of the acquisition
date. When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is immediately recognized in the
profit or loss.

The Bank elects on a transaction-by transaction basis whether to measure non-controlling
interest at its fair value, or at its proportionate share of the recognized amount of the identifiable
net assets, at the acquisition date. The consideration transferred does not include amounts
related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized
in profit or loss. Transactions costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity
securities, that the Bank incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as
incurred.
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3.2.2 Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)

The group presents non-controlling interests in its consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from the equity of the owners of the parent. The group attributes the
profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of the parent
and to the non-controlling interests. The proportion allocated to the SUNRISE Bank and non-
controlling interests are determined on the basis of present ownership interests.

The group also attributes total comprehensive income to the owners of the Bank and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

3.2.3 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Bank. The Bank is presumed to control an
investee when it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. At each
reporting date the Bank reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more elements of control mentioned above.

The Financial Statements of subsidiary are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Bank and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control
ceases. The Financial Statements of the Bank’s subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting
year as per the Bank, using consistent accounting policies.

The acquired identifiable assets, liabilities are measured at their cost at the date of acquisition.
After the initial measurement, the Bank continues to recognize the investments in subsidiaries
at cost.

The subsidiary of the Bank is incorporated in Nepal.
3.2.4 Loss of Control

When the Bank loses control over a Subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
former subsidiary from the consolidated statement of financial position. The Bank recognizes
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value when control is lost and
subsequently accounts for it and for any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary in
accordance with relevant NFRSs. That fair value shall be regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset in accordance with relevant NFRS or, when appropriate, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture. The Bank recognizes the
gain or loss associated with the loss of control attributable to the former controlling interest.

3.2.5 Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

An entity may be created to accomplish a narrow and well-defined objective (e.g. to affect a
lease, research and development activities or a securitization of financial assets). Such a special
purpose entity (*'SPE’) may take the form of a corporation, trust, partnership or unincorporated
entity.

The Bank does not have any special purpose entity.
3.2.6 Transaction elimination on consolidation
In consolidating a subsidiary, the group eliminates full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the subsidiary and the bank

(profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets, such as
inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full).
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks and money at call and at
short notice. These are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used
by the Bank in the management of short term commitments.

Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.
Financial assets and Financial Liabilities

3.4.1 Initial Recognition

a) Date of Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date on which
the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes ‘regular
way trades’. Regular way trade means purchases or sales of financial assets that required
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

b) Recognition and Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

The classification of financial instruments at the initial recognition depends on their purpose
and characteristics and the management’s intention in acquiring them. All financial instruments
are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
acquisition or issue of such financial instruments except in the case of such financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as per the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS
39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). Transaction costs in relation to
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.4.2 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Instruments

I ificati i sul LM t of Fi ial A l
At the inception, a financial asset is classified into one of the following:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
i) Financial assets held for trading
ii) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
b) Held to Maturity Financial Assets
c) Loans and Receivables
d) Financial assets designated at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.
a) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

i) Financial Assets Held for Trading

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed
together for short-term profit or position taking. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by Bank that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS) 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”.
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Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognized in ‘Net trading income’. Dividend income is recorded in
‘Net trading income’ when the right to receive the payment has been established

Bank evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio, other than derivatives, to determine whether
the intention to sell them in the near future is still appropriate. When Bank is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention to sell them in the
foreseeable future significantly changes, the Bank may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
Financial assets held for trading include instruments such as government securities and equity
instruments that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term.

ii) Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Bank designates financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the following circumstances:

» Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets.

» The assets are part of a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy.

» The assets contain one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise have been required under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss is recorded in the Statement
of Financial Position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Net gain or loss on
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or losses’ in the Statement of Profit
or Loss. Interest earned is accrued under ‘Interest income’, using the effective interest rate
method, while dividend income is recorded under ‘Other operating income’ when the right to
receive the payment has been established.

The Bank has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as designated at fair
value through profit or loss.

b) Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities which the Bank has the intention and ability to hold to maturity.
After the initial measurement, held to maturity financial investments are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate, less impairment. The amortization is included
in ‘Interest income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment of
such investments are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

c) Loans and Receivables from Customers

Loans and receivables include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than:

> Those that the Bank intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that the
Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as fair value through profit or loss.

» Those that the Bank, upon initial recognition, designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

» Those for which the Bank may not recover substantially all of its initial investment through
contractual cash flows, other than because of credit deterioration.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate, less allowance for impairment. The amortization is included
in ‘Interest Income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in ‘Impairment charge / reversal for loans and other losses’ in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.
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However, the bank has opted to apply carve-out provided by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal and recognize interest income at the coupon rate and continually
measured the carrying amount of loans and receivable at cost/fair value less repayment and
allowance for impairment.

d) Financial Assets designated at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

Financial Assets designated at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income include equity
and debt securities. Equity Investments classified here are those which are neither classified
as ‘Held for Trading’ nor ‘Designated at fair value through profit or loss’. Debt securities in this
category are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, financial investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses
are recognized directly in equity through ‘Other comprehensive income / expense’ in the ‘Fair
Value reserve’. When the investment is disposed of the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in equity is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Other operating
income’. Interest earned whilst holding ‘financial investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income’ is reported as ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate.
Dividend earned whilst holding ‘financial investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income’ are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss as ‘other operating
income’ when the right to receive the payment has been established. The losses arising from
impairment of such investments are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under
‘Impairment charge for loans and other losses’ and removed from the ‘fair value reserve’.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income that are monetary
securities denominated in a foreign currency - translation differences related to changes in the
amortized cost of the security are recognized in income statement and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.

In the normal course of business, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition
is the transaction price (that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received). In
certain circumstances, however, the fair value will be based on other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument, without modification or repackaging, or on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, such as interest rate
yield, option volatilities and currency rates. When such evidence exists, the Bank recognizes a
trading gain or loss on inception of the financial instrument, being the difference between the
transaction price and fair value.

When unobservable market data have a significant impact on the valuation of financial
instruments, the entire initial difference in fair value from the transaction price as indicated
by the valuation model is not recognized immediately in the income statement. Instead, it is
recognized over the life of the transaction on an appropriate basis, when the inputs become
observable, the transaction matures or is closed out, or when the Bank enters into an offsetting
transaction.

Classificati | Sul M f Ei ial Liabiliti

At the inception, Bank determines the classification of its financial liabilities. Accordingly
financial liabilities are classified as:

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

i) Financial liabilities held for trading

ii) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
b) Financial liabilities at amortized cost
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a) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

i) Financial Liabilities Held for Trading

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is
managed together for short-term profit or position taking. This category includes derivative
financial instrument entered into by Bank that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement).

ii) Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Bank designates financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at following circumstances:

» Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities.

> The liabilities are part of a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which
are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy

> The liability contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise have been required under the contract.

b) Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial instruments issued by Bank that are not classified as fair value through profit or loss
are classified as financial liabilities at amortized cost, where the substance of the contractual
arrangement results in Bank having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial
asset to another Bank, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another Bank
under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Bank or settling the obligation by
delivering variable number of Bank’s own equity instruments.

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Within this category, deposits and debt instruments
with fixed maturity period have been recognized at amortized cost using the method that very
closely approximates effective interest rate method. The amortization is included in ‘Interest
Expenses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

However, the bank has opted to apply carve-out provided by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal and recognize interest expense at the coupon rate and continually
measured the carrying amount of loans and receivable at cost/fair value less repayment.
3.4.3 Reclassification of Financial Instruments

a) Reclassification of Financial Instruments 'At fair value through profit or loss’,

Bank does not reclassify derivative financial instruments out of the fair value through profit or
loss category when it is held or issued.

Non-derivative financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is not reclassified subsequently out of fair value through profit or loss category.

Bank may, in rare circumstances reclassify financial instruments out of fair value through
profit or loss category if such instruments are no longer held for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term notwithstanding that such financial instruments may have been
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acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets
classified as fair value through profit or loss at the initial recognition which would have also
met the definition of ‘Loans and Receivables’ as at that date is reclassified out of the fair value
through profit or loss category only if Bank has the intention and ability to hold such asset for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

The fair value of financial instruments at the date of reclassification is treated as the new cost
or amortized cost of the financial instrument after reclassification. Any gain or loss already
recognized in respect of the reclassified financial instrument until the date of reclassification is
not reversed to the Statement of Profit or Loss.

If a financial asset is reclassified, and if Bank subsequently increases its estimates of the future
cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that
increase is recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate from the date of the
change in estimate rather than an adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset at the date
of change in estimate.

b) Reclassification of Financial Instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Bank may reclassify financial assets out of financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income category as a result of change in intention or ability or in rare
circumstances that a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available.

A financial asset designated at fair value through other comprehensive income that would have
met the definition of loans and receivables at the initial recognition may be reclassified out of
financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income to the loans and
receivables category if Bank has the intention and ability to hold such asset for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.

The fair value of financial instruments at the date of reclassification is treated as the new cost
or amortized cost of the financial instrument after reclassification. Difference between the new
amortized cost and the maturity value is amortized over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. Any gain or loss already recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
in respect of the reclassified financial instrument is accounted as follows:

i) Financial assets with fixed maturity :

Gain or loss recognized up to the date of reclassification is amortized to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. If the financial asset
is subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

i) Financial assets without fixed maturity :

Gain or loss recognized up to the date of reclassification is recognized in profit or loss only
when the financial asset is sold or otherwise disposed of. If the financial asset is subsequently
impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

If a financial asset is reclassified, and if Bank subsequently increases its estimates of future
cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that
increase is recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate from the date of the
change in estimate rather than an adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset at the date
of change in estimate.

c) Reclassification of 'Held to Maturity’ Financial Instruments
As a result of a change in intention or ability, if it is no longer appropriate to classify an

investment as held to maturity, Bank may reclassify such financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income and re- measured at fair value. Any difference
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between the carrying value of the financial asset before reclassification and fair value is
recognized in equity through other comprehensive income.

However, if Bank were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held to maturity
investments before maturity [other than in certain specific circumstances permitted in Nepal
Accounting Standard - NAS 39(Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement)], the
entire category would be tainted and would have to be reclassified as ‘Financial Instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income’. Furthermore, Bank would
be prohibited from classifying any financial assets as ‘Held to Maturity’ during the following
two years. These reclassifications are at the election of management and determined on an
instrument by instrument basis.

3.4.4 De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
a) De-recognition of Financial Assets

Bank derecognizes a financial asset (or where applicable a part of financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) when:

> The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

> Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or

> Bank has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either Bank has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)
and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is
recognized in profit or loss.

When Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to
the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, Bank also recognizes
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that Bank has retained.

When Bank’s continuing involvement that takes the form of guaranteeing the transferred asset,
the extent of the continuing involvement is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration received by Bank that Bank
could be required to repay.

When securities classified as financial instruments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to income statement as gains and losses from investment
securities.

b) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration
paid is recognized in profit or loss.
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c) Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase at a specified future date are not de-recognized
from the Statement of Financial Position as the Bank retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership. The corresponding cash received is recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position as a liability with a corresponding obligation to return it, including accrued
interest under ‘Securities sold under repurchase agreements’, reflecting the transaction’s
economic substance to the Bank. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is
treated as interest expense and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective
interest rate. When the bank has the right to sell or re-pledge the securities, the Bank reclassifies
those securities in its Statement of Financial Position as ‘Financial assets held for trading
pledged as collateral or ‘Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income pledged as collateral, as appropriate.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at future date are not recognized
in the Statement of Financial Position. The consideration paid, including accrued interest,
is recorded in the Statement of Financial Position, under “Reverse repurchase agreements’
reflecting the transaction’s economic substance to the Bank. The difference between the
purchase and resale prices is recorded as ‘Interest income’ and is accrued over the life of the
agreement using the effective interest rate. If securities purchased under agreement to resell
are subsequently sold to third parties, the obligation to return the securities is recorded as a
short sale within ‘Financial liabilities held for trading’ and measured at fair value with any gains
or losses included in ‘Net trading income”.

3.4.5 Fair Value Measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit
price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at
that date. The fair value of liability reflects its non-performance risk. When available, the Bank
measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument (Level 01 valuation). A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis on an arm’s length basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that
maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would
take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally
the transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank
determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the
fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability (Level 01 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets (Level 02 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially measured at
fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate
basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported
by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of
the credit risk of the Bank entity and the counterparty where appropriate. Fair value estimates
obtained from models are adjusted for any other factors, such as liquidity risk or model
uncertainties; to the extent that the Bank believes a third-party market participant would take
them into account in pricing a transaction.

The fair value of a demand deposit is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted
from the first date on which the amount could be required to be paid.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Bank recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

3.4.6 Impairment of Financial Assets

Bank assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss is impaired.
A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if and only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events, that have occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (an ‘incurred loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include: indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is
experiencing significant financial difficulty; the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization; default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; and
where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

a) Impairment of Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, such as amounts due from banks, held to maturity
investments etc., Bank first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. In the event Bank determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics such as collateral type, past due status
and other relevant factors and collectively assesses them for impairment. However, assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognized in the income statement. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

i) Individually Assessed Financial Assets

The criteria used to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment include and
not limited to:

» Known Cash Flow difficulties experienced by the borrowers:

» Past due contractual payments of either principal or interest;

» Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

» The probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
and

» A significant downgrading in credit rating by an external credit rating agency.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured by discounting the expected future
cash flows of a financial asset at its original effective interest rate and comparing the resultant
present value with the financial asset’s current carrying amount. The impairment allowances
on individually significant accounts are reviewed more regularly when circumstances require.
This normally encompasses re-assessment of the enforceability of any collateral held and
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the timing and amount of actual and anticipated receipts. Individually assessed impairment
allowances are only released when there is reasonable and objective evidence of reduction in
the established loss estimate. Interest on impaired assets continues to be recognized through
the unwinding of the discount.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Bank. If,
in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the impairment charges for loans and other
losses.

When impairment losses are determined for those financial assets where objective evidence of
impairment exists, the following common factors are considered:

» Bank’s aggregate exposure to the customer;

» The viability of the customer’s business model and their capacity to trade successfully out
of financial difficulties and generate sufficient cash flows to service debt obligations;

» The amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;

» The extent of other creditors ‘commitments ranking ahead of, or pari-pasu with the Bank
and the likelihood of other creditors continuing to support the company;

» The realizable value of security and likelihood of successful repossession;

ii) Collectively Assessed Financial Assets

Impairment is assessed on a collective basis in two circumstances:

» To cover losses which have been incurred but have not yet been identified on loans subject
to individual assessment; and

» For homogeneous groups of loans those are not considered individually significant.

The bank has opted to apply carve-out on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly,

individual and collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared with the

impairment provision required under NRB directive no.2, higher of the amount derived from

these measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and receivables.

Impairment losses under both options are presented hereunder;

As per NFRS 2075/76
Individual 146,759,241
Collective 169,271,036
Total 316,030,277
Charge to P/L (12,704,516)
As per NRB 2075/76
Loan Loss Provision 1,216,373,440
Charged to P& L 103,523,760

Individually assessed financial assets for which no evidence of loss has been specifically identified
on an individual basis are grouped together according to their credit risk characteristics for the
purpose of calculating an estimated collective loss. This reflects impairment losses that the
bank has incurred as a result of events occurring before the reporting date, which the Bank is
not able to identify on an individual loan basis and that can be reliably estimated.
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These losses will only be individually identified in the future. As soon as information becomes
available which identifies losses on individual financial assets within the group, those financial
assets are removed from the group and assessed on an individual basis for impairment.

The collective impairment allowance is determined after taking into account:

» Historical Loss Experience in portfolios of similar credit risk; and

» Management’s experienced judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual level of inherent losses at the reporting date is like to be greater
or less than that suggested by historical experience.

H F Fi ials A

Statistical methods are used to determine impairment losses on a collective basis for
homogenous groups of financial assets. Losses in these groups of financial assets are recorded
on an individual basis when individual financial assets are written off, at which point they are
removed from the group.

Bank uses the following method to calculate historical loss experience on collective basis:

After grouping of loans on the basis of homogeneous risks, the Bank uses net flow rate
method. Under this methodology the movements in the outstanding balance of customers into
default categories over the periods are used to estimate the amount of financial assets that will
eventually be irrecoverable, as a result of the events occurring before the reporting date which
the Bank is not able to identify on an individual loan basis.

Under this methodology, loans are grouped into ranges according to the number of days in
arrears and statistical analysis is used to estimate the likelihood that loans in each range will
progress through the various stages of delinquency and ultimately prove irrecoverable.

Current economic conditions and portfolio risk factors are also evaluated when calculating the
appropriate level of allowance required covering inherent loss. These additional macro and
portfolio risk factors may include:

Recent loan portfolio growth and product mix
Unemployment rates

Gross Domestic Production (GDP)Growth
Inflation

Interest rates

Changes in government laws and regulations
Property prices

Payment status

VVVVVVVY

iii) Reversal of Impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the excess
is written back by reducing the financial asset Impairment allowance account accordingly. The
write-back is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv) Write-off of Financial Assets Carried At Amortized Cost

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written off
either partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. Where financial assets are secured, this is generally after receipt
of any proceeds from the realization of security.

v) Impairment of Rescheduled Loans and Advances

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral.
This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the
original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered
past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are
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met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to a criteria
are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an
individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original effective
interest rate (EIR).

vi) Collateral Valuation

The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The
collateral comes in various forms such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real
estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as
netting agreements. The fair value of collateral is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception
and based on the guidelines issued by the Nepal Rastra Bank. Non-financial collateral, such as
real estate, is valued based on data provided by third parties such as independent valuator and
audited financial statements.

vii) Collateral Legally Repossessed or Where Properties have Devolved to the Bank

Legally Repossessed Collateral represents Non-Financial Assets acquired by the Bank in
settlement of the overdue loans. The assets are initially recognized at fair value when acquired.
The Bank’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset is best used for its internal
operations or should be sold. The proceeds are used to reduce or repay the outstanding claim.
The immovable property acquired by foreclosure of collateral from defaulting customers, or
which has devolved on the Bank as part settlement of debt, has not been occupied for business
use.

These assets are shown as Legally Repossessed Collateral under “Other Assets.”

b) Impairment of Financial Assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

For financial investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income, Bank
assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment is
impaired.

In the case of debt instruments, Bank assesses individually whether there is objective evidence
of impairment based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognized in the Income Statement. Future interest income is based on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to a credit event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the impairment loss is reversed through
the Income Statement.

In the case of equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income, objective evidence would also include a ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in the fair
value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss is removed
from equity and recognized in the Statement of profit or loss. However, any subsequent
increase in the fair value of an impaired equity security designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Bank writes-off certain financial investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income when they are determined to be uncollectible.

3.4.7 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
Statement of Financial Position when and only when Bank has a legal right to set off the
recognized amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under NFRSs or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transaction
such as in trading activity.
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3.4.8 Amortized Cost Measurement

The Amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the
initial amount recognized and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Trading Assets

One of the categories of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is “held for trading”
financial assets. All financial assets acquired or held for the purpose of selling in the short term
or for which there is a recent pattern of short term profit taking are trading assets.

Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities

A derivative is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to the change in an
underlying variable such as an interest rate, commodity or security price, or index; that requires
no initial investment, or one that is smaller than would be required for a contract with similar
response to changes in market factors; and that is settled at a future date.

Forward contracts are the contracts to purchase or sell a specific quantity of a financial
instrument, a commodity, or a foreign currency at a specified price determined at the outset,
with delivery or settlement at a specified future date. Settlement is at maturity by actual
delivery of the item specified in the contract, or by a net cash settlement.

All freestanding contacts that are considered derivatives for accounting purposes are carried at
fair value on the statement of financial position regardless of whether they are held for trading
or non-trading purposes. Changes in fair value on derivatives held for trading are included in
net gains/ (losses) from financial instruments in fair value through profit or loss on financial
assets/ liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment
3.7.1 Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or
supply of services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be
used during more than one period. The Bank applies the requirements of the Nepal Accounting
Standard - NAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting for these assets. Property,
plant and equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably
measured.

3.7.2 Measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially
measured at its cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the asset and cost incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of an item of property, plant&
equipment. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended
use and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment
is capitalized as part of computer equipment. When parts of an item of property or equipment
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

3.7.3 Cost Model

Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.
3.7.4 Revaluation Model

The Bank has not applied the revaluation model to the any class of freehold land and buildings
or other assets. Such properties are carried at a previously recognized GAAP Amount.
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On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying amount is recognized in ‘Other
comprehensive income’ and accumulated in equity, under capital reserve or used to reverse a
previous revaluation decrease relating to the same asset, which was charged to the Statement
of Profit or Loss. In this circumstance, the increase is recognized as income to the extent of
previous write down. Any decrease in the carrying amount is recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit or Loss or debited to the Other Comprehensive income to the extent of any
credit balance existing in the capital reserve in respect of that asset.

The decrease recognized in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in
equity under capital reserves. Any balance remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect of
an asset is transferred directly to retained earnings on retirement or disposal of the asset.

3.7.5 Subsequent Cost

The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognized in the carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within that part will flow to the Bank and it can be reliably measured. The
cost of day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are charged to the Statement of
Profit or Loss as incurred.

3.7.6 Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated by using the written down value method on cost or valuation of
the Property & Equipment other than freehold land and leasehold properties. Depreciation on
leasehold properties is calculated by using the straight line method on cost or valuation of the
property. The rates of depreciations are given below:

Rate of Depreciation per annum (%)

For the FY ended

Particulars on mid July Remarks

2018 & 2019
Building 5
Office Equipments/ Furniture 15
Vehicle 15
Computer Hardware 20

Depreciated in 5 years using Straight

Computer Software 20 Line Method
Leasehold - | Lease period
Deferred Furnishing 33.33 Depreciated in 3 years using Straight

Line Method

3.7.7 Changes in Estimates

The asset’s methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial
year end.

3.7.8 Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major
plant and machinery and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress
would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

3.7.9 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of an asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
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in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Bank incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

3.7.10 De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or losses arising
from de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in the Statement
of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized. When replacement costs are recognized in
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the remaining carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Major inspection costs are capitalized. At each
such capitalization, the remaining carrying amount of the previous cost of inspections is
derecognized.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
3.8.1 Recognition

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. An intangible
asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. An intangible
asset is initially measured at cost. Expenditure incurred on an intangible item that was initially
recognized as an expense by the Bank in previous annual Financial Statements or interim
Financial Statements are not recognized as part of the cost of an intangible asset at a later
date.

3.8.2 Computer Software & Licenses

Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software costs incurred, licensed for use by the
Bank, which are not integrally related to associated hardware, which can be clearly identified,
reliably measured, and it's probable that they will lead to future economic benefits, are included
in the Statement of Financial Position under the category ‘Intangible assets’ and carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

3.8.3 Subsequent Expenditure

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only when it is probable that this expenditure
will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed
standard of performance and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset
reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Bank doesn’t have any
goodwill in its books of accounts.

3.8.4 Amortization of Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on a straight-line basis in the Statement
of Profit or Loss from the date when the asset is available for use, over the best of its useful
economic life based on a pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by
the bank. Amortization methods, useful lives, residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted if appropriate. The Bank assumes that there is no residual value for its
intangible assets.

Asset Category For the year ended 16 July 2019 For the year ended 16 July 2018
Computer 5 years 5 years
Software
Licenses 5 years or the period of license, 5 years or the period of license,
whichever is less whichever is less
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3.8.5 De-recognition of Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising on de recognition
of an item of intangible assets is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is
derecognized.

Investment Property

Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held (by the
owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business.

The Bank has recognized as investment property all land or land and building acquired by the
Bank as non banking assets in course of recovery of loans and advances to borrowers that have
turned into chronic defaulters.

Non banking assets (only land and building) are initially recognized at cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition the Group has chosen to apply the cost model allowed by NAS 40 - “Investment
Property” and since it is not intended for owner-occupied use, a depreciation charge is not
raised.

Income Tax

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate
amount included in determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and
deferred taxation. Income Tax expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except
to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income
in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. The Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

3.10.1 Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to
Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior years.

As per Para 61A of NAS 12, current tax and deferred tax shall be recognized outside profit or
loss if the tax relates to items that are recognized, in the same or a different period, outside
profit or loss. Therefore, current tax and deferred tax that relates to items that are recognized,
in the same or a different period:

(@) In other comprehensive income, shall be recognized in other comprehensive income;
(b) Directly in equity, shall be recognized directly in equity;

Further, As per Para 62A of NAS 12, NFRS require or permit particular items to be credited
or charged directly to equity. Examples of such items are:

(a) an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings resulting from either a change
in accounting policy that is applied retrospectively or the correction of an error (As per NAS
08 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors); and

(b) Amounts arising on initial recognition of the equity component of a compound financial
instrument.
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During first time adoption of NFRS, interest income recognition criteria was changed to accrual
basis from cash basis (change in accounting policy), hence the interest suspense up to FY
2073/74 was directly credited to equity (outside profit or loss) giving rise to an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings in line with Para 62A. The tax paid on the same
amount shall also be charged to equity in line with Para 61A of NAS 12.

The description of the interest during first time adoption of NFRS is as follows:

Particulars Amount
Total Interest Suspense up to FY 2074/75 (a) 346,008,422
Interest Recognized in FY 2074/75 (b) 74,540,901
Directly Charged to Equity due to Change in Accounting Policy (c)= (a-b) 271,467,521
Tax Paid @30% during FY 2074/75 (d)=c*30% 81,440,256

Thus, having reference to the provision of Para 61A of NAS 12 read with Para 62A, tax provision
(Rs. 81,440,256) on accrued income till previous period that should have been made in FY
2074/75 (arising out of first time adoption of NFRS) is directly charged to equity (through
adjustment in retained earnings) as the said amount is as adjustment arising out of correction
of previous year’s error.

3.10.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred
tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except:

» Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

> In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward
unused tax credits and unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that the
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carried
forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

» Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arising
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination, and at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

> In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in Subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference will be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is probable that sufficient profit will be available to allow the deferred tax
asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only to the extent that they relate to
income taxes imposed by the same taxation authority.
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Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are the Bank’s sources of funding.
Deposits include non-interest bearing deposits, saving deposits, term deposits, call deposits
and margin deposits. The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity period is the
amount repayable on demand. The fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits is considered
as the interest receivable on these deposits plus carrying amount of these deposits. They are
recognized initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred.
Debt securities are subsequently stated at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Subordinated liabilities are liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of
depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognized is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date,
taking in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is determined based on the present value of those cash flows.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by
the Bank from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under
the contract. The provision is measured as the present value of the lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Provision
is not recognized for future operating losses.

Before a provision is established, the Bank recognizes any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
Statement of Profit or Loss net of any reimbursement.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
Bank and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must
also be met before revenue is recognized.

3.13.1 Interest Income

For all financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss, EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

The bank has opted to apply carve-out and recognize interest income on accrual basis applying
the coupon rate, which is variable rate of interest.

Nepal Rastra Bank has issued Interest Recognition Guidelines through circular ref Number
001/76/77 dated 10*" Shrawan 2076. In relation to interest income, which is accrued but not
collected, probability of collection of interest is to be determined as per NAS 18. There are
three methods prescribed by the guidelines as follows:

a) If the principal and interest is not overdue and overdue for less than 3 months, then the
interest income is to be recognized on accrual basis.

b) If the principal and interest is due for 3 months and up to 12 months and collateral is
sufficient to cover the due amount, then the interest income is to be recognized on accrual
basis. Contrary, if the collateral is not sufficient then the interest income should be suspended
to recognize in the statement of profit or loss.
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c) If the principal and interest is due for more than 12 months and collateral is sufficient to
cover the due amount, and then the interest income should be suspended to recognize.
Contrary, if the collateral is not sufficient then the interest income should be ceased to
accrue.

SrBL has the practice of ceasing the interest income if the principal and interest are due
for more than 12 months. And in case of loan due from 3 months to 12 months, collateral
sufficiency was tested to obtain the amount of interest which is to be derecognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

The interest income which is to be derecognized in the statement of profit or loss of FY 2018-
19 amounts to Rs. 12,573,572.

3.13.2 Fee and Commission Income

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period.
These fees include Service fees, commission income. Loan syndication fees are recognized
as revenue when the syndication has been completed and the Bank retained no part of the
loan package for itself, or retained a part at the same effective interest rate as for the other
participants. Portfolio and other management advisory fees and service distribution fees are
recognized based on the applicable contracts, usually on a time apportionment basis.

3.13.3 Dividend Income

Dividend income is on equity instruments are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
within other income when the Bank’s right to receive payment is established.

3.13.4 Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and
includes all realized interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as wells as unrealized
changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities.

3.13.5 Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Trading assets such as equity shares and mutual fund are recognized at fair value through
profit or loss. No other financial instruments are designated at fair value through profit or loss.

The bank has no income under the heading net income from other financial instrument at fair
value through profit or loss.

Interest Expense

For financial liabilities measured at amortized cost using the rate that closely approximates
effective interest rate, interest expense is recorded using such rate. EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability.

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include:

a) Short-term employee benefits such as the following, if expected to be settled wholly
before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related services:

i) Wages, salaries and social security contributions;

ii) Paid annual leave and paid sick leave;

iii) Profit sharing and bonuses, and

iv) Non-monetary benefits (such as medical care) for current employees;
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Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under
short term cash bonus or profit sharing plans if the Bank has present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

b) Post-employment benefits, such as the following:
i) Retirement benefits (e.g.: gratuity, lump sum payments on retirement); and
ii) Other post-employment benefits such as post-employment life insurance

c) Other long term employee benefits and

d) Termination benefits

Post employments benefits are as follows:
3.15.1 Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an Bank pays
fixed contribution into a separate Bank Account (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior periods, as defined in
Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the
services rendered to Bank by the employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel
expense’ as and when they become due. Unpaid contributions are recorded as a liability under
‘Other Liabilities’.

Bank contributed 10% on the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Provident Fund. The
above expenses are identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined in
Nepal Accounting Standards - NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

3.15.2 Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. Accordingly, staff gratuity has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal
Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

a) Gratuity

In compliance with Labor Act, 2017, provision is made in the account year of service, for
gratuity payable to employees who joined bank on a permanent basis. An actuarial valuation
is carried out every year to ascertain the full liability under gratuity.

Bank’s obligation in respect of defined benefit obligation is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned for their service in the current and prior periods
and discounting that benefit to determine its present value, then deducting the fair value of any
plan assets to determine the net amount to be shown in the Statement of Financial Position.
The value of a defined benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction on the future contributions to the
plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any
minimum funding requirement that apply to any plan in Bank. An economic benefit is available
to Bank if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

Bank determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period to the
defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period. The discount rate is the yield at
the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms
of Bank’s obligations.
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The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the services provided by employees during
the year ended 16™" July, 2019s (current service cost) has been recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ together with the net interest expense. Bank
recognizes the total actuarial gain and loss that arises in calculating Bank’s obligation in respect
of gratuity in other comprehensive income during the period in which it occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are retirement age (60 years), early
withdrawal from service and retirement on medical grounds.

b) Unutilized Accumulated Leave

Bank’s liability towards the accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized beyond one year
from the end of the reporting period is treated as other long term employee benefits. Bank’s
net obligation towards unutilized accumulated leave is calculated by discounting the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods to determine the present value of such benefits. The discount rate is the yield at the
reporting date on government binds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of
Bank’s obligation. The calculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit method. Net
change in liability for unutilized accumulated leave including any actuarial gain and loss are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ in the period in which
they arise.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it contains a lease, is based on
the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

3.16.1 Finance Lease

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as finance lease. When
Bank is the lessor under finance lease, the amounts due under the leases, after deduction of
unearned interest income, are included in ‘Loans to & receivables from other customers’, as
appropriate. Interest income receivable is recognized in ‘Net interest income’ over the periods
of the leases so as to give a constant rate of return on the net investment in the leases.

When Bank is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalized and included
in ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and the corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
‘Other liabilities’. A finance lease and its corresponding liability are recognized initially at the
fair value of the asset or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. Finance
charges payable are recognized in ‘Interest expenses’ over the period of the lease based on
the interest rate implicit in the lease so as to give a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

The bank does not have finance lease transactions at the reporting dates.

3.16.2 Operating Lease

All other leases are classified as operating leases. When acting as lessor, Bank includes the
assets subject to operating leases in ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and accounts for them
accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized to the extent that residual values are not fully
recoverable and the carrying value of the assets is thereby impaired.

When Bank is the lessee, leased assets are not recognized on the Statement of Financial
Position.

During FY 2074/75 bank had opted to apply carve out and recognize rentals payable under
operating leases accounted for on accrual basis based on lease agreement.
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In current FY, the bank has applied straight line basis of accounting to account for rentals
payable under operating leases and additionally Rs. 14,521,750 has been charged as operating
lease expenses.

Foreign Currency Translation, Transactions and Balances

All foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, which is Nepalese
Rupees, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates when the transactions were affected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated to Nepalese Rupees using the spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that date and
all differences arising on non-trading activities are taken to ‘Other Operating Income’ in the
Statement of Profit or Loss. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference
between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items in foreign currency measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary items at rates
different from those which were initially recorded are dealt with in the Statement of Profit or
Loss.

Forward exchange contracts are valued at the forward market rates ruling on the reporting
date. Both unrealized losses and gains are reflected in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial guarantee and loan commitment

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due. Financial guarantee contracts may have various legal forms, such as a guarantee,
some types of letter of credit, etc. Where the bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to
a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, etc. whether cancellable
or not and the bank had not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are
included in these financial statements as commitments.

Share capital and reserves

Share capital and reserves are different classes of equity claims. Equity claims are claims on
the residual interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all its liabilities. Changes in
equity during the reporting period comprise income and expenses recognized in the statement
of financial performance; plus contributions from holders of equity claims, minus distributions
to holders of equity claims.

Regulatory Reserve against the uncollected interest income from loan customers has been
created after netting off income tax provision for the purpose. The recovered amount (Rs.
57,523,697) of interest suspense (net of tax) outstanding at Ashad End 2076 and recovered
till 15th of Shrawan 2076 has been shown under retained earnings.

The Bank has allocated 1% of net profit to corporate social responsibility fund. The Bank has
expensed Rs. 14,694,878 in FY 2075/76 from the CSR Fund created from last fiscal year.

Earnings per share
Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to the ordinary
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equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Earnings per share is calculated and presented in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of an entity:

> that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses
(including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the
same entity),

>  whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and

> For which discrete financial information is available.

Not every part of an entity is necessarily an operating segment or part of an operating segment.
For example, a corporate headquarters or some functional departments may not earn revenues
or may earn revenues that are only incidental to the activities of the entity and would not be
operating segments. For the purposes of this NFRS, an entity’s post-employment benefit plans
are not operating segments.

The bank has identified the key segments of business on the basis of nature of operations that
assists the Executive Committee of the bank in decision making process and to allocate the
resources. It will help the management to assess the performance of the business segments.
All operations between the segments are conducted on pre-determined transfer price. Treasury
department acts as the fund manager of the Bank.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Bank estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or the fair value of the Cash Generating Units (CGU) fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell,
appropriate valuation model is used.

Dividend on Ordinary Shares

Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they
are approved by the Bank’s shareholders. Dividend for the year that is approved after the
reporting date is disclosed as an event after the reporting date. Interim Dividend is deducted
from equity when they are declared and is no longer at the discretion of the Bank.

Cash Flow Statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared using ‘The Direct Method’, whereby gross cash
receipts and gross cash payments of operating activities, finance activities and investing
activities have been recognized.

Comparative Figures

The comparative figures and phrases have been rearranged wherever necessary to conform to
the current year’s presentation.
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3.26 Other Disclosures
a) Staff Loans measured at fair value

Under NFRS, the Bank has to measure the staff loans granted below the market interest rate
at their fair value, calculate based on the market interest rate of similar products.

The fair value of such loans as at 31, Ashad 2076 the fair value of staff loan was Rs. 444.44
million and their carrying amount was Rs. 578.20 million. The difference between the fair
value and carrying amount was Rs. 133.76 million has been netted off against staff loans &
recognized as pre-paid staff cost in other assets.

b) Adjustment on loan impairment

In compliance with the NRB Directives and subsequent amendment there to, specific loan loss
provision were made based on the arrears time period and General provision were made at a
specified rate given by NRB from time to time.

As at Ashad 31 2076 the impairment provision of Rs. 1,216.37 million was recognized against
total of Rs. 1,121.85 million loan loss provision previously recognized in FY 2074/75. The
movement between the impairment balances of two years was recognized in the Statement of
profit or loss as an impairment charge.

Cc) Financial Investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Under NFRS, the Bank has designated equity investments, mutual funds investments as financial
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income and measured at
fair value.

As at Ashad 31 2076 the fair value of the investment was Rs. 785.98 million and NAS carrying
amount was Rs. 810.66 million The difference between the instruments fair value and NAS
carrying amount was Rs. 24.68 million has been recognized in the fair value reserve and
movement was charged to Other Comprehensive Income.

The deferred tax liability has been created @30% on such income and routed through statement
of profit or loss account to retained earnings consequently decreasing the fair value reserve by
such amount.

d) Interest Income

Income amounting to Rs. 9,206.43 million was recognized for financial year 2018/19 for
accrual of interest on loans, Interest benefit for staff loans as an impact of interest unwinding
and interest on investments and placements.

e) Personnel Cost

An expense of Rs. 5.70 million as gratuity was additionally charged and Rs. 2.18 million
was reversed as Personnel expenses as result of actuarial valuation and, 53.21 million as

amortization of prepaid staff loan for Financial Year 2018/19.

i) Bonus to staffs —10% bonus has been calculated on Profit before tax.
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Disclosures and Additional Information
Risk Management

Sunrise Bank has specific internal review mechanism to assess its position regarding each
separate risk area including Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk.

5.1.1 Credit Risk

The Bank has its own Credit Policy Guidelines to handle the Credit Risk Management philosophy
that involves a continual measurement of probability of default/loss; identification of possible
risks and mitigations. The provisions of Capital Adequacy Framework -2015 are compiled in
line to line basis to overcome the Credit Risk. In order to manage and eliminate the credit risk,
the Bank has a practice of maintaining the best quality assets in its book. The Bank’s Credit
Policy elaborates detailed procedures for proper risk management. The Bank has delegated
credit approval limits to various officials to approve and sanction various amount of credit
request based on their individual expertise and risk judgment capability.

Regular monitoring of the credit portfolio ensures that the Bank does not run the risk of
concentration of portfolio in a particular business sector or a single borrower. Similarly the
Bank also exercises controlled investment policy with adequately equipped resource looking
after the investment decisions.

To cap these all, the Bank has a strong Credit Committee in place comprising of various
Directors from the Board of the Bank which reviews all credit proposals beyond a specified
amount

5.1.2 Market Risk

Bank risk management committee has approved the market risk policy of the Bank. As for the
monitoring of market and liquidity risk, the Bank has an active Assets and Liability Management
Committee (ALCO) in place which meets regularly and takes stock of the Bank’s assets and
liability position and profile of assets & liabilities, monitors risks arising from changes in
exchange rates in foreign currencies. All foreign exchange positions are managed by treasury
consisting of front office dealers with specific dealing limits and an independent back office.
The back office executes the deals made by the dealers and also monitors the liquidity position
of the Bank. For the purpose of proper check and control, the front dealing room of treasury
and the back office has different reporting line.

5.1.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to a bank arising from either its inability to meet its
obligations or to fund increases in assets as they fall due without incurring unacceptable cost or
losses. Liquidity is the ability of an institution to transform its assets into cash or its equivalent
in a timely manner at a reasonable price to meet its commitments as they fall due. Liquidity
risk is considered a major risk for banks. It arises when the cushion provided by the liquid
assets are not sufficient enough to meet its obligation. In such a situation banks often meet
their liquidity requirements from market. Funding through market depends upon liquidity in
the market and borrowing bank’s liquidity.

The board has ensured that the bank has necessary liquidity risk management framework and
bank is capable of confronting uneven liquidity scenarios. The bank has formulated liquidity
policies, contingency funding planning which are recommended by senior management/ALCO
and approved by the Board of Directors. The bank utilizes flow measures to determine its cash
position. A maturity ladder analysis estimates a bank’s inflows and outflows and thus net deficit
or surplus (GAP) over a time horizon. A maturity ladder is a useful device to compare cash
inflows and outflows both on a day-to-day basis and over a series of specified time periods as
presented in the NRB Ni.Fa.No.5.1 under NRB Directives No. 5.
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5.1.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some
assets and liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available.
For other assets and liabilities, observable market transactions and market information might
not be available. However, the objective of a fair value measurement in both cases is the
same — to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer the
liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market
participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 input

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date. Held for trading and financial instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income investments have been recorded
using Level 1 inputs.

Level 2 inputs
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

5.1.5 Operational Risk

As a part of monitoring operational risks, the Bank has devised operational manuals for various
Banking functions, which are reviewed and modified time to time as per the changing business
context.

The Bank has adopted dual control mechanism in its all operational activities where each and
every financial and non financial transaction is subject to approval from an authority higher
than the transaction initiator. Regular review meetings are conducted to assess the adequacy
of risk monitoring mechanism and required changes are made as and when felt necessary.
Independent reconciliation unit is established to conduct daily reconciliation of all Nostro/
agency accounts, Inter-Branch and Inter-Department account under direct supervision of Chief
Financial Officer. The Bank has independent internal audit, which reports to the Audit Committee
of the Bank. The Audit Committee meets frequently and reviews the business process and
financial position of the Bank. In order to have better focus on managing operational risks
across branches and to monitor them from Head Office level, the Bank has separate Branch
Operation and Control & Compliance Department at Head Office. The Bank has strong MIS in
place to monitor the regular operational activities.

Capital management
a) Qualitative Disclosures
i) Board and senior management oversight

Bank management is responsible for understanding the nature and level of risk being taken by
the bank and how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible for ensuring
that the form and sophistication of the risk management processes is commensurate with the
complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the foundation for an
effective assessment of the adequacy of a bank’s capital position. The decisions made by the
management are regularly reviewed by the BOD.
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i) Sound capital assessment

Crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to be able to
make a sound capital assessment, the bank has the following:

> Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the bank identifies, measures, and reports
all material risks;

A process that relates capital to the level of risk;

A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the
bank’s strategic focus and business plan; and

A process of internal control reviews and audits to ensure the integrity of the overall
management process.

Y VV

iii) Comprehensive assessment of risks

Chief Risk Officer (CRO), along with his team, is responsible for overall risk management of
the Bank which includes managing, assessing, identifying, monitoring and reducing pertinent
global, macro and micro-economic level business risks that could interfere with Banks objective
and goals and whether the Bank is in substantial compliance with its internal operating policies
and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal, regulatory or contractual
requirements on a continuous basis. Further, CRO ensures integration of all major risk in
capital assessment process.

iv) Risk Management Committee (RMC)

Board level risk management committee has been set up under NRB Directive for ensuring/
reviewing bank's risk appetite is in line with the policies.

v) Monitoring

Monitoring and reporting of all risks, including credit, operational and market risks are
identified, escalated, monitored and mitigated to the satisfaction of the risk type owner.
The risk type owner is responsible for ensuring that all the risks are adequately identified,
escalated, monitored and mitigated. The Bank has an adequate system in place for monitoring
and reporting risk exposures and assessing how the changing risk profile affects the need for
capital. The senior management and board of directors on a regular basis receive the report
regarding the risk profile of the bank and its capital needs. All the material risks are identified,
measured, monitored and reported by the respective risk type owner.

vi) Internal Control Review

The internal control structure of the Bank is essential for sound capital assessment process.
Effective control of the capital assessment process includes an independent review and
involvement of both internal as well as external audits wherever appropriate. The Bank is
committed conduct the regular review of its risk management process to ensure its integrity,
accuracy, and reasonableness. The effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control system is
reviewed regularly by the Board, its committees, Management and Internal Audit.

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies and standards and the effectiveness
of internal control structures across the Bank through its program of business/unit audits.
The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of greatest risk as determined by a risk-
based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reports regularly to the Audit Committee. The
findings of all adverse audits are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and Business Heads
for immediate corrective actions.

vii) Assets and Liability Committee (ALCO)

The ALCO, chaired by Chief Executive Officer, ensures functioning of the banking business in
line with the set procedures and processes and recommends for necessary steps to address
the risk associated with liquidity, movement in interest rate, exchange rate and equity price
and other risks.
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viii) Stress Testing

Stress Testing is a risk management technique used to evaluate the potential effects on an
institution’s financial condition, of a set of specified changes in risk factors, corresponding to
exceptional but plausible events. The Bank conducts the stress test on quarterly basis and
reports to senior management as well as to Nepal Rastra Bank.

ixX) Maker-Checker Policy

The Bank has adopted Maker-Checker Policy in all of the transactions. Each and every
transaction is entered and authorized in CBS by two different individuals for better control
and any deviations are closely monitored. The activities of any personnel can be monitored
centrally through an integrated system which helps in minimizing the risk of misconduct.

b) Quantitative Disclosures

1. Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

i) Tier 1 Capital and breakdown of its Components

S.N. | Particulars Amo,\ljmiégg?
a Paid up Capital 8,152.56
b Share Premium / Capital Reserve 127.16
c Statutory General Reserve 1,794.14
d Retained Earnings 1,175.24
e Other Free Reserves 17.79
f Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests (298.22)
g Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized (32.61)

Core (Tier-1) Capital 10,936.07

i) Tier 2 Capital and breakdown of its Components

SN Particulars Amount (NPR

Millions)
a Subordinated Term Debt 1000.00
b General Loan Loss Provision 758.13
C Exchange Equalization Reserve 27.83
d Investment Adjustment Reserve 0.01
Supplementary (Tier-2) Capital 1,785.97

ii) Details of Subordinated Term Debts

Bank has subordinated term debts amounting NPR 1 billion which has been allotted on
14 May 2019. The major feature of the debt is as follows:

Nomenclature Sunrise Debenture 2080
Duration 5 Years
Amount 1,000,000,000
Face Value Rs. 1,000 per unit
No. of Units 1,000,000
Coupon rate (%) 10.00
Interest Payable Semi-annually
Redeemable/Irredeemable Redeemable
Secured/Unsecured Unsecured
Convertible/Non- Convertible Non-Convertible

90 3i anfiicp grddcar
3. d. 200Y/006




JoRIS5T Scb 3fes
SUNRISE BANK LIMITED

iv) Deductions from Capital

> Investment made in Gurans Life Insurance Company Limited of NPR 141.08 million
and investment in Sunrise Capital Limited NPR 157.14 million (Investments in equity of
institutions with Financial Interest)

> Rs 32.61 million for land and building not in use by bank that includes land purchased
at Bharatpur, Chitwan (Rs 25.75 Million) not brought into use and proportionate WDV of
buildings not used by bank and rented out to other parties (Rs 6.86 million)

v) Total Qualifying Capital

S. N. | Particulars Amol\ljir;ltic()gg’)R
A Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 10,936.07
B Core Capital 10,936.07
C Supplementary Capital 1,785.97
Total Capital 12,722.04

vi) Capital Adequacy of the Bank

The capital adequacy of the bank (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II) has been detailed
below:

S. N. | Particulars %
A Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11.37
B Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11.37
C Total Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 13.22

vii) Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital
to support current and future activities, if applicable:

Bank’s current paid up capital amounts to Rs 8.15 Billion. The Bank complies with the Capital
Increment plan of NRB which has also helped the Bank to be in steady and strong capital
position. The overall strategy of the bank has been formulated with the special consideration
to the capital adequacy requirement according to BASEL-III.

viii) Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

Bank has subordinated term debts amounting NPR 1 billion which has been allotted on 14 May
2019. The major feature of the debt is as follows:

Nomenclature Sunrise Debenture 2080
Duration 5 Years
Amount 1,000,000,000
Face Value Rs. 1,000 per unit
No. of Units 1,000,000
Coupon rate (%) 10.00
Interest Payable Semi-annually
Redeemable/Irredeemable Redeemable
Secured/Unsecured Unsecured
Convertible/Non- Convertible Non-Convertible
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2. RISK EXPOSURES
a) Risk Weighted Exposures

All material risks faced by the bank have been addressed in the capital assessment process.
However, bank has developed a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. All the
three risks that have direct impact on the capital adequacy level have been managed in a
structured manner with clear roles and responsibilities. In order to make a comprehensive
assessment of risks, the process has, at minimum, addressed the forms of risks covered below:

SN | Particulars Amount (NPR

Millions)
a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 88,006
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 4,277

Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 87
RWA Before Pillar 2 adjustment 92,371

All risks, including credit, operational and market risks are identified, escalated, monitored
and mitigated to the satisfaction of the risk type owner. The risk type owner is responsible
for ensuring that all the risks are adequately identified, escalated, monitored and mitigated.
The Bank has an adequate system in place for monitoring and reporting risk exposures and
assessing how the changing risk profile affects the need for capital. The senior management
and board of directors on a regular basis receive the report regarding the risk profile of the
bank and its capital needs. All the material risks are identified, measured, monitored and
reported by the respective risk type owner.

b) Credit Risk under 11 Categories

The Credit Risks under the 11 categories as per the Capital Adequacy Framework, 2015 and
Basel -III has been detailed below:

Net Book
SN Risk Classification Value RWE
(NPR Million)

a | Claims on Govt. and Central Bank 14,303 -
b Claims on other Financial Entities - -
C Claims on Banks 5,602 1,360
d Claims on Corporate and Securities Firm 32,290 32,290
e Claims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio 20,648 15,486
f Claims secured by Residential Properties 9,193 5,547
g Claims secured by Commercial Real State 3,933 3,933
h Past due Claims 602 903
i High Risk Claims 1,100 1,650
j Other Assets 3,606 3,341
k | Off balance sheet items 50,159 23,496

TOTAL 141,436 88,006

c) Total Risk Weighted Exposure Calculation Table

. . Amount (NPR
S.N. | Risk Weighted Exposure Milli(gns)

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 88,006

b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 4,277

c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 87
Adjustments under Pillar 11

Add: 1% of the NII to RWA for ALM Policy and Practice 28

3% additional risk weight for Operational Risk 1,041

3% adjustment on Total RWE for Overall Risk 2,771

Total Risk Weighted Exposure 96,211
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d) Detail of Non-Performing Loans

Gross Value | Net Value
(In NPR Million)

Particulars

Restructured Loans -

Sub-Standard Loans 235.16 176.37

Doubtful Loans 174.26 87.13

Loss Loans 312.32 -
Total NPA 721.74 263.50

e) Ratio of Non-Performing Loans

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Gross NPA 1.03% 1.24%
Net NPA 0.37% 0.42%

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
NAS 39 requires financial assets to be classified in one of the following categories:

> Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

> Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
Loans and receivables
Held to maturity investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have two sub-categories:

» Financial asset that is designated on initial recognition as one to be measured at fair value
with fair value changes in profit or loss.

> Held for trading

NAS 39 recognizes two classes of financial liabilities:

> Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
» Other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method

The category of financial liability at fair value through profit or loss has two sub-categories:

» Financial liability that is designated by the entity as a liability at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition
> Held for trading

The classification of financial assets or liabilities is given in detail in Note 3.4.
Operating Segment Information

1. General Information

An operating segment is a component of an entity:

> that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses
(including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the
same entity),

> whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision
maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and

» For which discrete financial information is available.
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Not every part of an entity is necessarily an operating segment or part of an operating segment.
For example, a corporate headquarters or some functional departments may not earn revenues
or may earn revenues that are only incidental to the activities of the entity and would not be
operating segments. For the purposes of this NFRS, an entity’s post-employment benefit plans
are not operating segments.

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Amount in Mn.

Particular Provl | Prov2 | Prov3 | Gandaki | Prov5 | Karnali | Sudurpaschim Total
Revenues from external customers 1,808 780 6,191 314 719 27 480 10,319
Intersegment Revenues (860) (325) 1,847 (79) (390) (1) (192) -
Net Revenue 948 455( 8,038 235 329 26 288 10,319
Interest Revenue 1,718 716 5,332 298 679 25 439 9,206
Interest Expenses 346 141 4,810 105 122 8 91 5,622
Net Interest Revenue (b) - - - - - - - -
Depreciation and Amortization 19 11 91 5 8 2 6 141
Segment Profit (Loss) before tax 265 170 1,843 47 79 (7) 109 2,506
Impairment of Assets (86) (30) 66 (10) (37) (2) 4) (104)
Segment Liabilities 7,166 3,641| 64,846 2,041 2,296 290 2,061 82,341
Segment Assets 7,562 4,026 75,779 2,164 2,508 329 2,243 94,611

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The bank has identified the key segments of business on the basis of nature of operations that
assists the Executive Committee of the bank in decision making process and to allocate the
resources. It will help the management to assess the performance of the business segments.
The Segment has been identified on the basis of geographic location of the branches. Investment
balances, NRB balance, income from investment, FOREX income are reported in Head office
under Province 3. Intra segment revenue and costs are accounted as per the policy of the bank
and eliminated in the Head Office

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

a) Revenue Amount in NPR

Total revenues for reportable segments

10,319,092,963

Other revenues

Elimination of intersegment revenues

Entity’s Revenue

10,319,092,963

b) Profit or Loss

Amount in NPR

Total profit or loss for reportable segments

2,505,892,550

Other profit or loss

Elimination of intersegment profits

Unallocated amounts:

Other Operating expense

Profit before income tax

2,505,892,550

c) Assets

Amount in NPR

Total assets for reportable segments

94,610,743,676

Other assets

Unallocated amounts

Entity's Assets

94,610,743,676
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d) Liabilities
Amount in NPR

Total liabilities for reportable segments 82,340,593,243

Other liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Entity's Liabilities 82,340,593,243

5. Information about product and services
Amount in NPR

S.N Revenue 10,319,092,963
A Loans related Services 8,936,340,482
B Treasury related services 517,277,759
C Transaction Banking related services 864,298,772
D Other services 1,175,951

6. Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas
Amount in NPR

(@) Domestic 10,319,092,963
Province 1 947,701,633
Province 2 455,294,740
Province 3 8,037,838,709
Province 4 234,912,964
Province 5 329,457,182
Province 6 25,905,790
Province 7 287,981,946

(b) Foreign -
Total 10,319,092,963

7. Information about Major Customer

Revenue from single customer doesn’t exceed 10% of total revenue.

Share options and share based payment

A share-based payment is a transaction in which the bank receives goods or services either
as consideration for its equity instruments or by incurring liabilities for amounts based on the
price of the entity's shares or other equity instruments of the entity. The bank does not have
any share option and share based payment.

Contingent liabilities and commitment

5.6.1 Contingent Liabilities:

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees
issued, such as for performance bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit as part of the Bank’s
transaction banking business for which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the

reporting date, those are included in these financial statements as contingent liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable letters of credit and bonds issued on
behalf of customers to customs, for bids or offers.
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5.6.2 Commitments:

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a
customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or
letters of credit and the Bank has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments
are included in these financial statement as commitments.

Please refer Note No. 4.28.1 to 4.28.4 for the detail of contingent liabilities and commitments
as at 16 July 2019.

5.6.3 Litigations:

Litigations are anticipated in the context of business operations due to the nature of the
transactions involved. The Bank and the Group are involved in various such legal actions and
the controls have been established to deal with such legal claims. There are pending litigations
existing as at the end of the reporting period against the Large Taxpayers Office, resulting
through normal business operations.

The details of litigations are presented in 4.28.5

Related parties disclosures

a) Transaction with related party
Amount in NPR

Particulars FY 2075/76

Deposit Maintained by Sunrise Capital 219,766,710
Interest Paid to Sunrise Capital 22,137,551
RTS Fee paid to Sunrise Capital 350,000
Dividend Processing Fee paid to Sunrise Capital 667,145
Electricity Expenses paid by Sunrise Capital 264,036
Water Expenses paid by Sunrise Capital 78,200
House Rent paid by Sunrise Capital 1,815,000

b) Key Managerial Personnel

Key Management Personnel of the Bank include members of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
and all managerial level executives. Followings are a list of Board of Directors and CEO bearing
office at 16 July 2019.

Key Management Personnel Relation

Mr. Motilal Dugar Chairman

Er. Bachh Raj Tater Director

Mr. Malchand Dugar Director

Er. Shailendra Guragain Public Director

Ms. Sharada Sharma Pudasaini Public Director

Mr. Deepak Nepal Public Director

Mr. Om Krishna Joshi Independent Director
Mr. Janak Sharma Poudyal Chief Executive Officer*

* CEO has resumed office from 25 July 2019.
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c) Compensation to Board of Directors

All members of the Board are non-executive directors and no executive compensation is paid
to the directors. Specific non-executive allowances paid to directors are as under:

Board Meeting fees Rs. 1,744,000

Other benefits Rs. 1,646,585

Merger and acquisition

The Bank has not entered into any merger or acquisition activity for the fiscal year ended on
16 July 2019.

Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

Associates are those entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over
the financial and operating policies. Investments in associate entities are accounted for using
the equity method (equity-accounted investees) and are recognized initially at cost. The cost
of the investment includes transaction costs.

Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities

Not applicable

Events after reporting period

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 16 July 2019 till the signing of
this financial statement on 17 September 20109.

The Board has decided to propose 5.80% cash dividend (including tax on cash dividend and
bonus shares) and 10% bonus share for the approval by the 12" Annual General Meeting of the
Bank.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE & CAPITAL ADEQUACY OF THE BANK

Disclosure under BASEL Il

As at Mid-July 2019

i. Tier 1 Capital and breakdown of its Components

JoRIS5T Scb 3fes
SUNRISE BANK LIMITED

S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR Millions)

a Paid up Capital 8,152.56
b Share Premium / Capital Reserve 127.16
C Statutory General Reserve 1,794.14
d Retained Earnings 1,175.24
e Other Free Reserves 17.79
f Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests (298.22)
g Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized (32.61)

Core (Tier-1) Capital 10,936.07

ii. Tier 2 Capital and breakdown of its Components

SN Particulars Amount (NPR Millions)
a Subordinated Term Debt 1,000.00
b General Loan Loss Provision 758.13
C Exchange Equalization Reserve 27.83
d Investment Adjustment Reserve 0.01
Supplementary (Tier-2) Capital 1,785.97

iili. Details of Subordinated Term Debts
Bank has subordinated term debts amounting NPR 1 billion which has been allotted on 14
May 2019. The major feature of the debt is as follows:

Nomenclature

Sunrise Debenture 2080

Duration 5 Years
Amount 1,000,000,000
Face Value Rs. 1,000 per unit
No. of Units 1,000,000
Coupon rate (%) 10.00

Interest Payable

Semi-annually

Redeemable/Irredeemable

Redeemable

Secured/Unsecured

Unsecured

Convertible/Non- Convertible

Non-Convertible

iv. Deductions from Capital

Investment made in Gurans Life Insurance Company Limited of NPR 141.08 million
and investment in Sunrise Capital Limited NPR 157.14 million (Investments in equity of
institutions with Financial Interest)

Rs 32.61 million for land and building not in use by bank that includes land purchased
at Bharatpur, Chitwan (Rs 25.75 Million) not brought into use and proportionate WDV of
buildings not used by bank and rented out to other parties (Rs 6.86 million)

90 ¥ anfffap gradcar

3lI. d. 200Y/004



JoRIS5T Scb 3fIes
SUNRISE BANK LIMITED

v. Total Qualifying Capital

S. N. Particulars Amount (NPR Millions)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 10,936.07
Core Capital 10,936.07
Supplementary Capital 1,785.97
Total Capital 12,722.04

vi. Capital Adequacy of the Bank
The capital adequacy of the bank (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II) has been detailed

below:

S.N. Particulars %
A Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11.37
B Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11.37
C Total Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 13.22

vii. Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to
support current and future activities, if applicable:
Bank’s current paid up capital amounts to Rs 8.15 Billion. The Bank complies with the
Capital Increment plan of NRB which has also helped the Bank to be in steady and strong
capital position. The overall strategy of the bank has been formulated with the special
consideration to the capital adequacy requirement according to BASEL-III.

viii. Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.
Bank has subordinated term debts amounting NPR 1 billion which has been allotted on 14
May 2019. The major feature of the debt is as follows:

Nomenclature Sunrise Debenture 2080
Duration 5 Years
Amount 1,000,000,000
Face Value Rs. 1,000 per unit
No. of Units 1,000,000
Coupon rate (%) 10.00
Interest Payable Semi-annually
Redeemable/Irredeemable Redeemable
Secured/Unsecured Unsecured
Convertible/Non- Convertible Non-Convertible

RISK EXPOSURES
a. Risk Weighted Exposures

All material risks faced by the bank have been addressed in the capital assessment process.
However, bank has developed a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. All the
three risks that have direct impact on the capital adequacy level have been managed in a
structured manner with clear roles and responsibilities. In order to make a comprehensive
assessment of risks, the process has, at minimum, addressed the forms of risks covered below:

SN Particulars Amount (NPR Millions)
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 88,006
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 4,277
c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 87
RWA Before Pillar 2 adjustment 92,371
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All risks, including credit, operational and market risks are identified, escalated, monitored
and mitigated to the satisfaction of the risk type owner. The risk type owner is responsible
for ensuring that all the risks are adequately identified, escalated, monitored and mitigated.
The Bank has an adequate system in place for monitoring and reporting risk exposures and
assessing how the changing risk profile affects the need for capital. The senior management
and board of directors on a regular basis receive the report regarding the risk profile of the
bank and its capital needs. All the material risks are identified, measured, monitored and

reported by the respective risk type owner.

b. Credit Risk under 11 Categories

The Credit Risks under the 11 categories as per the Capital Adequacy Framework, 2015 and
Basel -III has been detailed below:

_ o Net Book Value |  RWE
SN Risk Classification
(NPR Million)

a [ Claims on Govt. and Central Bank 14,303 -
b | Claims on other Financial Entities - -
c | Claims on Banks 5,602 1,360
d | Claims on Corporate and Securities Firm 32,290 32,290
e | Claims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio 20,648 15,486
f | Claims secured by Residential Properties 9,193 5,547
g | Claims secured by Commercial Real State 3,933 3,933
h | Past due Claims 602 903
i High Risk Claims 1,100 1,650
j Other Assets 3,606 3,341
k | Off balance sheet items 50,159 23,49
TOTAL 141,436 88,006

c. Total Risk Weighted Exposure Calculation Table

S.N. Risk Weighted Exposure Amount (NPR Millions)
a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 88,006
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 4,277
c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 87
Adjustments under Pillar Il
Add: 1% of the NIl to RWA for ALM Policy and Practice 28
3% additional risk weight for Operational Risk 1,041
3% adjustment on Total RWE for Overall Risk 2,771
Total Risk Weighted Exposure 96,211
d. Detail of Non-Performing Loans
. Gross Value | Net Value
Particulars
(In NPR Million)
Restructured Loans -
Sub-Standard Loans 235 176
Doubtful Loans 174 87
Loss Loans 312 -
Total NPA 721 263
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e. Ratio Of Non-Performing Loans

Particulars This Year Prev Year
Gross NPA 1.02% 1.24%
Net NPA 0.37% 0.42%

f. Movement of Non-Performing Assets (Gross)

During the Year, Non-Performing Accounts (NPA) decreased by 3.64%.

Non Performing Assets NPR Millions

Current Year 721.74
Previous Year 749.07
Change (Amount) (27.33)
Change (%) (3.64)

g. Write Off of Loans & Interest Suspense

Particulars NPR Millions
Loan Written Off 45.91
Interest Suspense Written Off 77.41
Total 123.32

h. Movement of Loan Loss Provision and Interest Suspense

As per NRB Directives, all interest accruals on loans and advances, irrespective of loan category,
are transferred to interest suspense account until the interest accrued and due is realized in
cash. Details of Interest Suspense Movement are as follows:

Particulars This Year (NPR) Prev. Year (NPR) Change %
Loan Loss Provision 1,216,373,440 1,112,849,680 9.30
Interest Suspense 354,487,111 346,008,422 2.45

i. Details of Additional Loan Loss Provisions:

Additional LLP for the Year NPR.

Pass 88,215,535
Watch-List 53,768,313
Restructured -
Sub-Standard 28,796,406
Doubtful (75,251,829)
Loss 7,995,332
Total 103,523,758

j. Segregation of investment portfolio:

Investment

Amount (NPR Millions)

Held For Trading

Held Till Maturity 10,925
Available For Sale 811
Total Investment 11,736
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3. Risk Management Function

a. Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to
support all the risks in business and achieve better risk management techniques
in monitoring and managing risks

. . ,

Bank management is responsible for understanding the nature and level of risk being taken
by the bank and how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It is also responsible
for ensuring that the form and sophistication of the risk management processes is
commensurate with the complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process,
thus, is the foundation for an effective assessment of the adequacy of a bank’s capital
position. The decisions made by the management are regularly reviewed by the BOD.

ii. Sound capital assessment

Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to be
able to make a sound capital assessment, the bank has, at minimum, have the following:

] Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the bank identifies, measures, and
reports all material risks;

o A process that relates capital to the level of risk;

o A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the
bank’s strategic focus and business plan; and

] A process of internal control reviews and audits to ensure the integrity of the overall
management process.

iii. Comprehensive assessment of risks

Chief Risk Officer (CRO), along with his team, is responsible for overall risk management
of the Bank which includes managing, assessing, identifying, monitoring and reducing
pertinent global, macro and micro-economic level business risks that could interfere
with Banks objective and goals and whether the Bank is in substantial compliance with
its internal operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external,
legal, regulatory or contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Further, CRO ensures
integration of all major risk in capital assessment process.

iv. Risk Management Committee (RMC)

Board level risk management committee has been set up under NRB Directive for ensuring/
reviewing bank's risk appetite is in line with the policies.

lit Ris!

The Bank’s Credit Policy Guidelines has adopted a Credit Risk Management philosophy that
involves a continual measurement.

Market Risk

The Bank has in place Assets Liability Management (ALM) Policy, and Assets Liability
Management Committee (ALCO), which monitors risks arising from changes in exchange
rates in foreign currencies; liquidity profile of assets and liabilities, investment activities of
the bank etc.
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Board and senior management of the bank places high priority on effective operational risk
management and adherence to sound operating controls. The Bank has developed and
implemented various manuals, operating procedures and guidelines for monitoring and
controlling Operational Risks in the Bank.

Most significant steps adopted by the Bank for handling Operational Risks are as follows:

Independent reconciliation department accustomed to conducting daily reconciliation of
all agency accounts and Inter-Branch accounts. Transaction Stack System is in place on
amount limit basis. Exception and MIS reports are generated by the system on a ‘Live’
basis, where account activity can be monitored as and when they occur. General Authority
schedule is in place to delegate authority to staff across all levels. Independent Internal
Audit has been appointed to carry out review of internal controls and compliance. Output in
all transactions is checked by a higher authority level. Disaster Recovery Server is in place
to ensure full restoration of Bank’s data.

Other Risk

In addition to credit, credit concentration, operational and market risk the Bank identifies,
assess and monitors other risks such as strategic risk and reputational risks at regular
interval.

v. Monitoring

Monitoring and reporting of all risks, including credit, operational and market risks are
identified, escalated, monitored and mitigated to the satisfaction of the risk type owner.
The risk type owner is responsible for ensuring that all the risks are adequately identified,
escalated, monitored and mitigated. The Bank has an adequate system in place for monitoring
and reporting risk exposures and assessing how the changing risk profile affects the need
for capital. The senior management and board of directors on a regular basis receive the
report regarding the risk profile of the bank and its capital needs. All the material risks are
identified, measured, monitored and reported by the respective risk type owner.

vi. Internal Control Review

The internal control structure of the Bank is essential for sound capital assessment process.
Effective control of the capital assessment process includes an independent review and
involvement of both internal as well as external audits wherever appropriate. The Bank
is committed conduct the regular review of its risk management process to ensure its
integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. The effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its committees, Management and Internal Audit.

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies and standards and the effectiveness
of internal control structures across the Bank through its program of business/unit audits.
The Internal Audit function is focused on the areas of greatest risk as determined by a risk-
based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reports regularly to the Audit Committee.
The findings of all adverse audits are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and Business
Heads for immediate corrective actions.

vii. Assets and Liability Committee (ALCO)

The ALCO, chaired by Chief Executive Officer, ensures functioning of the banking business
in line with the set procedures and processes and recommends for necessary steps to
address the risk associated with liquidity, movement in interest rate, exchange rate and
equity price and other risks.
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viii. Stress Testing

Stress Testing is a risk management technique used to evaluate the potential effects on an
institution’s financial condition, of a set of specified changes in risk factors, corresponding
to exceptional but plausible events. The Bank conducts the stress test on quarterly basis
and reports to senior management as well as to Nepal Rastra Bank.

ix. Maker-Checker Policy

The Bank has adopted Maker-Checker Policy in all of the transactions. Each and every
transaction is entered and authorized in CBS by two different individuals for better control
and any deviations are closely monitored. The activities of any personnel can be monitored
centrally through an integrated system which helps in minimizing the risk of misconduct.

b. Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM

SN | Credit Risk Mitigants Amount (NPR Millions)
Claims on Domestic Corporate 71
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue) 479
Off Balance Sheet Items 810

Total Credit Risk Mitigants 1,360
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Sunrise Bank Limited
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As on Quarter Ended 16th July 2019

Group Bank

Particulars Immediate Previous Year Immediate Previous Year

This Quarter Ending Ending (Audited) This Quarter Ending Ending (Audited)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 6,356,761,783 2,586,532,195 6,356,761,783 2,442,007,615
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 3,241,044,764 5,033,055,545 3,241,044,722 5,033,055,545
Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 1,324,863,371 3,939,629,863 1,165,352,372 3,869,629,863
Derivative financial instruments 93,860,043 - 93,860,043
Other trading assets 86,859,603 24,959,135 -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 1,149,493,530 999,587,580 1,149,493,530 999,587,580
Loan and advances to customers 68,878,669,583 59,213,551,390 68,878,669,583 59,213,551,390
Investment Securities 11,824,371,900 9,720,458,385 11,724,371,900 9,720,458,385
Current tax assets 79,115,835 47,686,848 76,234,834 43,085,259
Investment in subsidiaries - - 157,142,000 157,142,000
Investment in associates - - R
Investment property 398,180,042 119,254,047 398,180,042 119,254,047
Property and equipment 922,005,163 733,539,802 918,878,761 730,247,831
Goodwill And intangible assets 68,761,626 76,776,984 68,490,426 76,415,384
Deferred tax assets 53,146,995 51,953,563 53,146,995 53,146,995
Other assets 287,760,703 328,875,325 387,327,937 325,328,298
Total Assets 94,764,894,941 82,875,860,662 94,668,954,928 82,782,910,192
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 3,809,335,211 2,126,890,375 3,809,335,211 2,126,890,375
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 839,808,639 526,567,379 839,808,639 526,567,379
Derivative financial instruments - 23,324,347 - 23,324,347
Deposits from customers 75,212,384,159 67,193,215,276 75,432,150,870 67,366,127,515
Borrowing - - -
Current Tax Liabilities - - -
Provisions - - -
Deferred tax liabilities - - -
Other Liabilities 1,441,094,879 1,353,450,682 1,242,798,034 1,185,662,469
Debt securities issued 996,352,782 - 996,352,782
Subordinated Liabilities - - -
Total Liabilities 82,298,975,669 71,223,448,059 82,320,445,535 71,228,572,085
Equity
Share capital 8,152,555,851 8,152,555,851 8,152,555,851 8,152,555,851
Share premium 127,161,065 127,161,065 127,161,065 127,161,065
Retained earnings 1,530,642,106 977,590,216 1,481,222,400 941,855,312
Reserves 2,596,726,528 2,340,415,129 2,587,570,078 2,332,765,879
Total equity attributable to equity holders 12,407,085,549 11,597,722,260 12,348,509,394 11,554,338,107
Non-controlling interest 58,833,722 54,690,343 - -
Total equity 12,465,919,271 11,652,412,603 12,348,509,394 11,554,338,107
Total liabilities and equity 94,764,894,941 82,875,860,662 94,668,954,928 82,782,910,192
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SUNRISE BANK LIMITED
DETAILS OF LOAN WRITE OFF
For the Period Ended 1st Shrawan 2075 to 31st Ashad 2076 (17th July 2018 to 16th July 2019)

S.N

Customer

Loan Type

Amount

Type Of
Security

Basis of
Valuation

Loan
Approved By

Initation Made For Recovery

Remarks

Agni Air Pvt. Itd

Force Loan

2,23,458

Land and
Aircarfts

Engineer

BOD

Published 35 days notice on 2072.01.24.
Published 15 days auction notie on 2072.02.28,
2072.03.25, 2074.02.23, 2074.07.19 and
2074/07/19.

Published 7 days auction notice on 2072.06.06
and 2072.06.14.
Blacklisted borrower
2072.03.29.

Case filed at DRT on 2074.09.25

and guarantor on

Annapurna Multi Ind Pvt Ltd

Overdraft, Force Loan

2,84,50,938

Land and
Building,
Factory, mill &
machine

Engineer

CEO

Published 35 days notice on 2012.09.06.
Published 35 days notice loan settlement and
15 days auction notice on 2013.09.04
Published 7days auction notie on 2070.11.22,
2071.01.01, 2071.03.13 and 2075.01.24
Blacklisted borrower and guarantor on
2071.05.09.

Case filed at DRT on 2075.07.28

a. Recovery of Rs. 21,184.50K by
acquisition of FAC (plot no. 375 and 187)
as NBA.
B. Recovery of Rs. 9,000.00K by
acquisition of FAC (plot no. 17 and 18)
as NBA.

Balu Trade Link Pvt.Ltd

Force Loan

29,366

CEO

35 days notice and 15 days auction notice
published
Blacklisting and case filed at DRT.

Bhawani Darlami

Force Loan

66,681

CEO (NNFL)

15 days loan settlement notice published on
2070.03.06

35 days auction notice published on
2070.04.01, 2070.09.15 and 2072.10.04

15 days auction notice pubished on 2071.01.03
21 days auction notice published on 2071.04.09
Case filed at DRT on 2074.03.27

Charles William Mendies

Force Loan

24,027

CEO

35 days notice and 35 days and 15 days auction
notice published

Dhana Bahadur Bhandari

Hire purchases,Forceloan

10,25,381

vehicle (TATA
commercial
bus)

Engineer

CEO (NNFL)

21 Days Notice for regularization/ repayment
of loan 2073.12.31. Publication of 35 public
notice as on 2074.04.18.15 Days auction notice
as on 2074.06.09.7 Days auction notice as on
2075.08.10

Case filed to DRT on 2076.03.22

Recovery of Rs. 881K by auctioning.

Dipendra Prasad Poudel

Hire purchases

18,31,063

vehicle (TATA
commercial
bus)

Engineer

CEO (NNFL)

35 Days auction notice public in Nagarik
Dairy Newspaper as on 2073-06-17,35 days
legal notice published in Annapurna Post
Newspaper as on 2071-12-06,15 days auction
notice published in Annapurna Post Newspaper
as on 2072-09-24, 15 days auction notice
published in Annapurna Post Newspaper as
on 2073-08-01.7 days auction notice published
in Annapurna Post as on 2073-09-12, 7 days
auction notice published in Annapurna Post as
on 2074-02-04, 7 days auction notice published
in Nagarik Dairy Newspaper as on 2074-12-19.

Ganesh Khadka

Hire Purchases

15,89,937

Vehicle (TATA
commercial
bus)

Engineer

CEO (NNFL)

7 days notice publish in Nagarik Daily
Newspaper as on 2072.12.24,35 Days auction
notice public in Nagarik Dairy Newspaper as on
2073-01-08,35 days legal notice published in
Annapurna Post Newspaper as on 2073-06-17,
15 days auction notice published in Annapurna
Post Newspaper as on 2073-08-01. 7 days
auction notice published in Annapurna Post as
on 2073.09.12 and 2074.02.04. 7 days auction
notice published in Nagarik Dairy Newspaper
ason 2074-12-19

Case filed to DRT on 2076.03.22

Recovery of Rs. 650K by auctioning.

H.A.Constrction Company
Pvt.Ltd

Force Loan

20,114

CEO

Published 35 days notice on 17.10.2012
Published 15 days auction notice on 17.01.2013
Blacklisted borrower and guarantor on
11.04.2014

Case filed at DRT on 11.04.2073

10

Harisova Shrestha

Force Loan

5,071

CEO (NCML)

35 days notice, 35 days, 15 days and 7 days
auction notice published

11

Kalpana Pandey

Hire Purchase and Force Loan

5,60,457

Vehicle(Tata
commercial
vehicle)

Supplier
quotation

CEO (NCML)

Published 35 days notice on 2070.05.11
Blacklisted borrower and guarantor on
2076.03.31

Case filed at DRT on 2074.12.15

Recovery of Rs. 638K from insurance
claim.

12

Manakamana Crusher
Udhyog Pvtltd

Force Loan

2,08,485

CEO

35 days notice and 15 days auction notice
published
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Publication of 35, 15 and three7 Days public

Land & notice as on 2074/02/03,2074/03/22,2074/0
13 Manakamana Plastic Overdraft, Demand Loan, Building and o 8/27,2074/10/08,2074/11/29. Black Listing of | Recovery of Rs. 21,019K by acquisition
Industries Fixed Term lan, Force loan 94,18,172| Factory Mill & customer and related parties as NBA.
Machine Blacklisted borrower and guarantors on
2074/12/22.
Published 35 days notice on 2072/08/03
Published 15 days auction notice on
Nepal Pragati Nirman Sewa 2072/10/18, 2072/10/21 and 2072/12/24
14 P. Ltd Force Loan 2,23,006 (ko Blacklisted borrower and guarantor on
2072/09/27
Case filed at DRT on 2074.03.28
Published 35 days notice on 2071/09/24
Published 15 days and 7 days auction notice on
. . 2072/06/28 and 2072/7/20
15 New Laxmi Rice Mill Force Loan 11,865 (ko Blacklisted borrower and guarantor on 13-04-
2073
Case filed to DRT on 28.03.2074
Written and Verbal Follow ups
35 Days public Notice in National Daily
Panchakumari Kastha Udyog Newspaper
16 PLtd Force Loan 56,428 BOD Auction Notices in National Daily Newspaper
Blacklisting
File Case with Debt Recovery Tribunal (DRT)
Published 35 days notice on 2073.12.12
vehicle (TATA Published 15 days auction notice on 2074.05.26
17 Rohit Prasad Dahal Hire Purchase Loan and VD MY Supplier D-CEO Published 7 days auction notice on 2074.07.20 | Recovery of Rs. 4100K from auction of
Force Loan 15,28,729 quotation Blacklisted borrower and guarantor on|two Tata CVD MCV buses.
Buses)
2075.06.14
Case filed to DRT on 2076.03.22
Published 35 days notice on 01.04.2013
Published 7 days auction on 28.05.2013,
30.07.2013, 26.12.2013, 17.04.2016 and
29.08.2016
18 Royal Saree Enterprises Force Loan 59,255 CEO Blacklisted borrower and guarantor on
! 2070.02.26 (09.06.2016)
NBA takeover of FAC (plot no. 3558) at Rs.
5,516.4 K is on hold due to Rokka at Malpot
office and the case is at Supreme court.
. 35 days notice and 15 days auction notice
19 Sangam Institute Pvtltd Force Loan 26,696 CEO published
Published 35 days notice loan settlement
published on 2069-06-12
Published 35 days auction notice on 2070-06-
17
Published 15days auction notice on 2070-09-
20 Uddhav Prasad Timilsina Force Loan 26,696 CEO (NCML) |23
! Blacklisted borrower and guarantor on 2071-
04-12
Case filed at DRT and DRT decision date 2072-
08-02
Published 35 days notice loan settlement
published on 2068/07/29
Published 15 days auction notice on n/a (PG
. Loan Without FAC)
2z Uma Rauniyar Force Loan 497 CEO (NCML) Blacklisted borrower and guarantor on 2069-
08-21
Case filed at DRT on 2070-11-16
Published 35 days notice on 2067/04/18,
2067/11/17 & 2070/10/24
Blacklisted borrower and guarantor on
22 Yagya Prasad Phuyal Force Loan 2127 CEO (NCML) [2068/03/05
! Recovery Case filed at DRT and decision
made on 2073/02/11 in favor of bank for loan
recovery of Rs. 20,23,969.91
Publication of 35 Days public notice as on
2074/10/11, Publication of 15 Days public
notice as on 2074/10/11. Recovery Rs. 18,554K through
Land and . Head SME |Publication of 7 Days public notice on|acquisition of FAC as NBA.
23| Yakut Tours & Travels Pvt. Ltd. Overdraft 500000 Buiding | E"8™" | andAGM |different dated i. 2075.08.10,2075.09.14 and|Recovery Rs. 9,648K through acquisition
2075.11.02. of FAC as NBA.
Blacklisted borrower and guarantors on
2075.10.25
Publication of 35 Days public notice as on Recovery of Rs. 2,500.99 K by auctioning
2070.05.11 & 2070.07.28
. Publication of 15 Days public notice as on of FAC [plot no. 842, 847, 850, 853, 856,
24 Yam Maya Sapkota Personal Loan 100 Land Engineer | CEO (NCML) 2070.00.07, 2074.01.14 & 2075.05.15 496 & 261) o
. Recovery of Rs. 1,600.00 K by auctioning
Blacklisted borrower and guarantors on of FAC (plot no. 2062)
2071.04.28 plotno.
Total 4,59,10,548
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INSIDE VALLEY BRANCH LIST

S.No. BRANCH NAME Province PHONE NO. S.No. BRANCH NAME Province PHONE NO.
1 ATTERKHEL 3 4913704 20 KAMALPOKHARI 3 4425347-343/4423219-398
2 BANESHWOR 3 4497521/4489294 21 KHUSIBU 3 4382950/ 4382952
3 BANIYATAR 3 5158066 22 KUPONDOLE 3 01-5180163/64
4 BHAINSEPATI 3 5592931/5592930 23 LAGANKHEL 3 5526178/5553480
5 BHAKTAPUR 3 6619240/6619241 24 LUVU 3 5580361
6 BOUDDHA 3 2239855/4916395 25 MAHARAJGUNJ 3 4721352/4720346
7 BUDHANILKANTHA 3 4378275 26 MANMAIU 3 4025993/4025515
8 CHABAHIL 3 4822766 27 MULPANI 3 01-4160117/8
9 GABAHAL 3 5005014/5005015 28 NAIKAP 3 01-4313465-4313462
10 GAIRIDHARA 3 4004510/4004560/61/64/65 29 New Road 1 3 4239470/4239471
11 GATHAGHAR 3 01-6634237/716 30 NEWROAD 2 3 4240134/ 4242302
12 GAUSHALA 3 4113668/67 31 PHARPING 3 4710865
13 GONGABU 3 4388505 32 PUTALISADAK 3 4010595/4421662
14 GOTHATAR 3 4992706 33 SANEPA 3 01-5542897/898
15 GOTIKHEL BRANCH 3 9841925204 34 SHANKHAMUL 3 4783996
16 JYATHA 3 4260654 35 SITAPAILA 3 4034996/97
17 KALANKI 3 5234795/96 36 TAUKHEL 3 01-6224821/ 5560574
18 KALIKASTHAN 3 4422554/55 37 THECHO 3 01-5573667/5574669
19 KALIMATI 3 4278694/4278709 38 TINKUNE 3 4111554/4111854/4111929

OUTSIDE VALLEY BRANCH LIST

S.No. NAME Province PHONE NO. S.No. NAME Province PHONE NO.
1 ATTARIYA 7 091-551004 43 JUMLA 6 087-520596/97
2 AURAHI 2 041-620055 44 KAKARVITTA 1 023-562083
3 BAGAR 4 061-532572, 061-532172 45 KALYANPUR 2 9851222017
4 BAMTIBHANDAR 3 9741428893 46 KAWASOTI 4 9851059323
5 BARAHAPOKHARI 1 9842471910 47 KINJA 1 9860076675
6 Bardibas 2 044-550563/65 48 KOHALPUR 5 081-542064/67
7 BESISAHAR 4 066-520129 49 KUSMA 4 067- 420029/ 420030
8 BHADRAPUR 1 023-520132/33 50 LAHAN 2 033-562403/04
9 BHAIRAHAWA 5 071-520703/520706 51 LAMKI 7 091-540548
10 BHARATPUR 3 056-533261 52 MAHABHARAT 3 9849340638
11 BINDABASINI 2 9755001213 53 MAHENDRANAGAR 7 099-520850
12 BIRATCHOWK 1 021-546102 54 MAIWAKHOLA 1 021-696488
13 BIRATNAGAR 1 021-440695/96 55 MANIGRAM 5 9857042613
14 BIRENDRANAGAR 6 083-523490/825 56 MANTHALI 3 048-540563
15 BIRGUNIJ 2 051-524784/524785 57 MARMA 7 9858422338
16 BIRTAMOD 1 023-546080/541069 58 MIRCHAIYA 2 033-550596
17 BUDHABARE 1 023-555478/418 59 MOLUNG 1 9741428889
18 BUDHIBAZAR 4 9856045340 60 NARAINAPUR 5 081-695056
19 BUTWAL 5 071-551572/73 61 Narayanghat 3 056-570543/313
20 CHAINPUR 7 092-421493/092-421494 62 NEPALGUNJ 5 081-523636/522484
21 CHANDRANIGAHAPUR 2 055-540536/636 63 NIJGADH 2 9855041621
22 CHURE 7 9858424661 64 NISDI 5 9851176826
23 DADELDHURA 7 096-420723 65 OKHALDHUNGA 1 037-520702
24 DAMAK 1 023-582360/ 61 66 PANAUTI 3 011-440602
25 DAMAULI 4 065-561800 67 POKHARA 4 061-537845
26 DARCHULA 7 093-420123 68 PRITI 3 9748647183
27 DEURALI 4 061-620845 69 RAJBIRAJ 2 031-520727/721
28 DHANGADI 7 091-524850 70 RAMMANDIR LINE 5 9851130536
29 DHANKUTA 1 026-520221-22 71 SANIBHERI 6 081-694916
30 DHARAN 1 025-532841 72 SHIWALAYA 3 9849075466
31 DHURKOT 5 9741468011 73 SIMARA 2 9845058831
32 DUHABI 1 025-541486 74 SUKHAD 7 091-403012/13
33 DUMRE 4 065-580355 75 SUNDAR BAZAR 4 066-402062/61/9756001100
34 DURGA BHAGWATI 2 055-400049 76 SUNWAL 5 078-570473
35 GAIGHAT 1 035-420778/ 420779/ 420780 77 SURUNGA 1 023-550880
36 GAUR 2 055-521413/14 78 TAMGHAS 5 079-520519-520699
37 GUTHICHAUR 6 9758005524 79 TANDI 3 056-562993
38 HETAUDA 3 057-525921 / 522731 80 TERHATHUM 1 026-460720
39 ILAM 1 027-521720 81 TIKAPUR 7 091-560370

40 ITAHARI 1 025-586924 82 TULSIPUR 5 082-523455
41 JANAKPUR 2 041-527245/46 83 UDAYAPUR 1 035-411016 /9753003729
42 JHUMKA 1 025-562353/653 84 WALING 4 063-440119
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